
 
 
 

 
James Whiteman 

Managing Director 
 

 

 

Guildford Borough Council 

Millmead House, Millmead, Guildford, Surrey  GU2 4BB 

www.guildford.gov.uk 

Democratic Services Officer:  

Sophie Butcher  

 
 

23 March 2021 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE to be 
held Via MSTeams on TUESDAY 30 MARCH 2021 at 1.30 pm. 
 
If for any reason Councillors lose their wi-fi connectivity to the meeting and you are 
unable to join using the link on the Outlook Calendar invitation, please re-join using the 
telephone number +44 020 3855 4748.  You will be prompted to input a conference ID: 
979 900 886# 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
James Whiteman 
Managing Director 
 
 

MEMBERS OF THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 

Councillor David Goodwin (Chairman) 
Councillor Dennis Booth 

Councillor Marsha Moseley 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

QUORUM 3 
 
 

Page 1



 

 

 

THE COUNCIL’S STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK  
 

Vision – for the borough 
 
For Guildford to be a town and rural borough that is the most desirable place to live, work 
and visit in South East England. A centre for education, healthcare, innovative cutting-edge 
businesses, high quality retail and wellbeing. A county town set in a vibrant rural 
environment, which balances the needs of urban and rural communities alike. Known for 
our outstanding urban planning and design, and with infrastructure that will properly cope 
with our needs. 
 
 
Three fundamental themes and nine strategic priorities that support our vision: 
 

Place-making   Delivering the Guildford Borough Local Plan and providing the range 
of housing that people need, particularly affordable homes 

 
  Making travel in Guildford and across the borough easier  
 
  Regenerating and improving Guildford town centre and other urban 

areas 
 
 
Community   Supporting older, more vulnerable and less advantaged people in 

our community 
 
  Protecting our environment 
 
  Enhancing sporting, cultural, community, and recreational facilities 
 
 
Innovation   Encouraging sustainable and proportionate economic growth to 

help provide the prosperity and employment that people need 
 
  Creating smart places infrastructure across Guildford 
 
  Using innovation, technology and new ways of working to improve 

value for money and efficiency in Council services 
 
 
Values for our residents 
 

 We will strive to be the best Council. 

 We will deliver quality and value for money services. 

 We will help the vulnerable members of our community. 

 We will be open and accountable.  

 We will deliver improvements and enable change across the borough. 
 

Page 2



 

 

A G E N D A 
 
ITEM 
NO. 
 

1     LOCAL CODE OF CONDUCT - DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 

 In accordance with the local Code of Conduct, a councillor is required to 
disclose at the meeting any disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI) that they may 
have in respect of any matter for consideration on this agenda. Any councillor 
with a DPI must not participate in any discussion or vote regarding that matter 
and that they must also withdraw from the meeting immediately before 
consideration of the matter. 
  
If that DPI has not been registered, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the 
details of the DPI within 28 days of the date of the meeting. 
  
Councillors are further invited to disclose any non-pecuniary interest which may 
be relevant to any matter on this agenda, in the interests of transparency, and to 
confirm that it will not affect their objectivity in relation to that matter. 
  
 

2     TO CONSIDER A TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICE (TEN) FOR DELTA 
FORCE PAINTBALL, OLD LANE, OCKHAM, COBHAM, SURREY, KT11 1NL 
TO BE USED AS A PREMISES FOR A) THE SALE BY RETAIL OF 
ALCOHOL, AND B) THE PROVISION OF REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT 
(Pages 5 - 24) 
 

 
 
 

Please contact us to request this document in an  
alternative format 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

LICENSING SUB–COMMITTEE  

30 MARCH 2021 

Application 
Type: 

Submission of a Temporary Event Notice (TEN) 

Ward: Lovelace Ward 
Councillors: 

1. Councillor Colin Cross 

Premises user: Mr Nicholas Baker 

Location: 
Delta Force Paintball 
Old Lane 
Ockham 
Cobham 
Surrey 
KT11 1NL 

Proposal:   
The premises user has given notice of the following licensable activities:  
 
(a)  the sale by retail of alcohol, and 
(b)  the provision of regulated entertainment 

 
on the following dates and times: 
 

 Saturday 31 July 2021 from 12:00 hrs to 23:00 hrs 
 

 

1. BACKGROUND 

1.1  The Licensing Act 2003 (the 2003 Act) requires the Council (as licensing authority) to 
carry out its various licensing functions to promote the following four licensing objectives:  

(1) the prevention of crime and disorder; 
(2) public safety; 
(3) the prevention of public nuisance; 
(4) the protection of children from harm. 
 

1.2  The 2003 Act further requires the Council to publish a ‘Statement of Licensing Policy’ that 
sets out the policies the Council will generally apply to promote the licensing objectives 
when making decisions on applications made under the Act. The current Statement of 
Licensing Policy took effect on the 7 January 2021.  

1.3  Under the 2003 Act, it is the duty of all licensing authorities, in carrying out their functions, 
to have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182. As long 
as the licensing authority has properly understood and considered the Guidance, it may 
depart from it when it has reason to do so. However, as the licensing authority is under a 
duty to have regard to the Guidance, it will need to give full reasons for its departure from 
it. This would be a key consideration for the courts should departure from the Guidance 
result in a determination, which gives rise to an appeal or judicial review.  

1.4 Temporary event notices allow licensable activities to be carried on without the need for a 
premises licence.  If a premises has a premises licence, they allow licensable activities to 
be carried on otherwise than in accordance with the licence.  They can therefore allow 
different activities or different hours.  Events carried on under the authority of a temporary 
event notice are not subject to the conditions on the premises licence. 

 

Page 5

Agenda item number: 2



 

2. SITE LOCATION AND HISTORY 

2.1 Delta Force Paintball is situated on Old Lane in Ockham. 

2.2 There are some residential and commercial properties in the vicinity, and it is a rural area 
of the borough.  A plan showing the location of the premises is attached at Appendix 1, 
with residential properties represented by a dot.  

2.3 There is no premises licence in force.  

3. APPLICATION  

3.1 A Temporary Event Notice was submitted by Mr Nicholas Baker on Monday 15 March 
2021 and the form is attached at Appendix 2. This notification was submitted within the 
correct time periods and has been accepted as a valid notice. 

3.2 The dates and times shown on the Notice are as follows: 

Saturday 31 July 2021 from 12:00 hrs to 23:00 hrs 
 

The licensable activities notified on the application are: 

a. the sale by retail of alcohol, and 
b. the provision of regulated entertainment 

 

The proposed event is for the premises to be used as a music venue for persons over the 
age of 18, with one bar offering alcohol, soft drinks and water. 

1.3     On 19 March 2021, Surrey Police served a notice of objection in relation to the temporary 
event notice. This notice was served within the timescales prescribed. 

1.4 The objection is based on their concern that the ‘prevention of crime and disorder’ and 
‘public safety’ licensing objectives would not be met. The objection notice refers to a lack 
of details relating to the management and controls of this event. A full copy of the 
objection notice is attached at Appendix 3. 

1.5 On 19 March 2021, Environmental Health served a notice of objection in relation to the 
temporary event notice. This notice was served within the timescales prescribed. 

1.6 The objection is based on their concern that the ‘prevention of public nuisance’ licensing 
objective would not be met. The objection notice refers to there being no information 
supplied regarding set up of the event, volume of the music and whether any 
consideration has been given to preventing a nuisance to residential properties in the 
locality. A full copy of the objection notice is attached at Appendix 4. 

4. CONSIDERING THE OBJECTION 

4.1 The factors to be taken into account when considering the objection are listed below: 

(a) The Sub-Committee is obliged to consider these objections with a view to promoting 
the licensing objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder, public safety and 
prevention of public nuisance. 

(b) The Sub-Committee must have regard to any representations made by Surrey 
Police, Environmental Health, and the applicant and any supporting evidence. 

(c) The Sub-Committee must, having regard to the objection notice, give a counter 
notice under Section 105 of the Act if it considers it appropriate for the promotion of 

Page 6

Agenda item number: 2



 

the licensing objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder or public safety or 
prevention of public nuisance to do so. A counter notice prevents the event from 
taking place. 

(d) If the Sub-Committee does not consider it appropriate to give a counter notice, the 
premises user will be entitled to hold the event as stated in the notice. No conditions 
can be attached to the notice because conditions can only be attached if they are 
already on a premises licence. 

(e) If the Sub-Committee decides to give a counter notice it must give the counter 
notice and a notice stating the reasons for the decision to the premises user, Surrey 
Police and Environmental Health.   

(f) There is a right of appeal to the Magistrate’s Court for the recipient of a counter 
notice or for Surrey Police or Environmental Health where no counter notice is 
given, however no appeal may be brought later than 5 working days before the 
event period begins.   

5. LICENSING POLICY 

5.1 The following sections of the Council’s Licensing Policy are relevant: 

 Section 4 – Fundamental Principles 

 Section 10 – Temporary Event Notices 

 Section 12.1 – The Licensing Objectives – Prevention of crime and disorder 

 Section 12.2 – The Licensing Objectives – Public safety 

 Section 12.3 – The Licensing Objections – Prevention of public nuisance 
 

6. NATIONAL GUIDANCE 

6.1 The following sections of the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State under 
Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 are relevant: 

 Paragraphs 2.1 to 2.6 – Crime and disorder 

 Paragraphs 2.7 to 2.14 – Public safety 

 Paragraphs 2.15 to 2.21 – Public nuisance 

 Paragraphs 7.1 to 7.40 – Temporary Event Notices. 

7. RECOMMENDATION 

7.1 The Sub–Committee is asked to consider the objection notices from Surrey Police 
and Environmental Health, together with any other submissions made at the 
hearing, and determine whether it is appropriate for the promotion of the prevention 
of crime and disorder objective and/or the public safety objective and/or the 
prevention of public nuisance objective to give a counter notice which will prevent 
the event from going ahead.  

 
Reason for recommendation 
To comply with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Background Papers: 

Amended Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003  

Originator: 

Page 7

Agenda item number: 2



 

Peter Muir 
Licensing Officer 
Tel: (01483) 444110 
E–Mail: peter.muir@guildford.gov.uk  

Page 8

Agenda item number: 2

mailto:peter.muir@guildford.gov.uk


Appendix 1 - Location
Scale at A4: 1:5000
Printed on: 19/3/2021 at 10:27 AM © Guildford Borough Council

© Guildford Borough Council, used with permission© Guildford Borough Council, used with permission

100 m
200 f t

P
age 9

A
genda item

 num
ber: 2

A
ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 11

Agenda item number: 2
Appendix 2



Page 12

Agenda item number: 2
Appendix 2



Page 13

Agenda item number: 2
Appendix 2



Page 14

Agenda item number: 2
Appendix 2



Page 15

Agenda item number: 2
Appendix 2



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Have you already given a 
temporary event notice for 
the same premises in which 
the event period:   
       a) Ends 24 hours or 
            less before; or  
       b) Begins 24 hours or less 
            after the event period   
            proposed in this notice?

Yes No

Section 8 of 9

ASSOCIATES AND BUSINESS COLLEAGUES (See also guidance on completing the form, note 16)

Has any associate of yours 
given a temporary event 
notice for an event in the 
same calendar year as the 
event for which you are now 
giving a temporary event 
notice? 

Yes No

Has any associate of yours 
already given a temporary 
event notice for the same 
premises in which the event 
period: 
       a) Ends 24 hours or 
            less before; or 
       b) Begins 24 hours or less  
            after the event period 
            proposed in this notice?

Yes No

Has any person with whom 
you are in business carrying 
on licensable activities given a 
temporary event notice for an 
event in the same calendar 
year as the event for which 
you are now giving a 
temporary event notice?

Yes No

Has any person with whom 
you are in business carrying 
on licensable activities 
already given a temporary 
event notice for the same 
premises in which the event 
period: 
       a) Ends 24 hours or less 
            before; or 
       b) Begins 24 hours or less 
            after the event period 
            proposed in this notice?

Yes No

Page 16

Agenda item number: 2
Appendix 2



Page 17

Agenda item number: 2
Appendix 2



Page 18

Agenda item number: 2
Appendix 2



Page 19

Agenda item number: 2
Appendix 3



Page 20

Agenda item number: 2
Appendix 3



1

Peter Muir

From: Ian Croll
Sent: 19 March 2021 11:32
To: Regulatory Services; nicks.ipod@ymail.com
Cc: Colin Whitear; Gary Durrant; Peter Muir; Mike Keech; Anjana Papnai; Environmental Protection
Subject: Licensing Act 2003 – Notice of objection to TEN GT-MAR2021-7 [UNC]

Switch-MessageId: 98257cd7eb234e569bb8f582119c8ae7

Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
Notification has been received by Environmental Health that a TEN application for music event at Delta Force 
Paintball, Old Lane, Ockham, KT11 1NL, between 12.00 and 23.00, on the 31/07/2021; maximum 450 people. The 
event will have amplified recorded music between these times.  
 
Environmental Health object to this application on the grounds that we are unable to determine if it would 
undermine the licensing objective of prevention of public nuisance. There is no information supplied regarding set 
up of the event, the volume of the music and whether any consideration has been given to preventing a nuisance to 
residential properties in the locality. 
 
This objection is also served on Surrey Police Licensing in accordance with the legislation. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
Ian Croll 
Environmental Health Officer 
Environmental Protection 
Regulatory Services 
Guildford Borough Council 
Millmead House, Millmead, Guildford, Surrey, GU2 4BB 
Tel: 01483 444372 l Email: ian.croll@guildford.gov.uk 
  
Twitter | Facebook |  Instagram |  Sign up to our enewsletter 
  

Guildford 
Borough 
Council 

http://www.guildford.gov.uk  

  

Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail or any attachment 

 
 
 

 

 

Page 21

Agenda item number: 2
Appendix 4



1

Peter Muir

From: Gary Durrant
Sent: 22 March 2021 12:35
To: Peter Muir; Ian Croll; Colin Whitear
Cc: Environmental Protection; Mike Smith
Subject: RE: Licensing Act 2003 – Notice of objection to TEN GT-MAR2021-7 [UNC]

Importance: High

Hello Peter 
 
Ian has stated: 
 
Environmental Health object to this application on the grounds that we are unable to determine if it would 
undermine the licensing objective of prevention of public nuisance. There is no information supplied regarding set up 
of the event, the volume of the music and whether any consideration has been given to preventing a nuisance to 
residential properties in the locality. 
 
To clarify; the event describes playing recorded music and has no indication of management of noise levels. Playing 
music without any restrictions is in the opinion of the environmental health service likely to cause a public nuisance. 
 
Regards 
 
 
Gary Durrant 
Team Leader  
Environmental Control 
Regulatory Services 
Guildford Borough Council 
Millmead House 
Guildford 
Surrey GU2 4BB 
01483‐444373/07970193748 
gary.durrant@guildford.gov.uk 
Follow us on Twitter @GuildfordBC 
 
Guildford 
Borough 
Council http://www.guildford.gov.uk 
 
 
�Please consider the environment before printing this e‐mail or any attachment 
 
 
 

From: Peter Muir <Peter.Muir@guildford.gov.uk>  
Sent: 22 March 2021 10:09 
To: Ian Croll <Ian.Croll@guildford.gov.uk>; Colin Whitear <colin.whitear@surrey.pnn.police.uk> 
Cc: Environmental Protection <environmental.protection@guildford.gov.uk>; Mike Smith 
<Mike.Smith@guildford.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: Licensing Act 2003 – Notice of objection to TEN GT‐MAR2021‐7 [UNC] 
Importance: High 
 

Page 22

Agenda item number: 2
Appendix 4



2

Morning both, 
 
Having reviewed your objections, neither clearly states why you feel the event as proposed would undermine a 
licensing objective. I appreciate you both want more information, but the Act requires the objection to state why a 
licensing objective will be undermined by the event going ahead. 
 
If you are able to do this today to strengthen your objections, you would still be in the statutory timeframe. 
 
Kind regards, 
 
Peter Muir 
Licensing Officer 
Licensing Team  
Regulatory Services 
Guildford Borough Council 
Millmead House, Millmead, Guildford, Surrey, GU2 4BB 
Tel: 01483 444110 l Email: peter.muir@guildford.gov.uk 
 
Follow us on Twitter @GuildfordBC 
 

Guildford 
Borough 
Council 

http://www.guildford.gov.uk 

 

 

Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail or any attachment 

 

From: Ian Croll <Ian.Croll@guildford.gov.uk>  
Sent: 19 March 2021 11:32 
To: Regulatory Services <regulatoryservices@guildford.gov.uk>; nicks.ipod@ymail.com 
Cc: Colin Whitear <colin.whitear@surrey.pnn.police.uk>; Gary Durrant <Gary.Durrant@guildford.gov.uk>; Peter 
Muir <Peter.Muir@guildford.gov.uk>; Mike Keech <Mike.Keech@guildford.gov.uk>; Anjana Papnai 
<Anjana.Papnai@guildford.gov.uk>; Environmental Protection <environmental.protection@guildford.gov.uk> 
Subject: Licensing Act 2003 – Notice of objection to TEN GT‐MAR2021‐7 [UNC] 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
Notification has been received by Environmental Health that a TEN application for music event at Delta Force 
Paintball, Old Lane, Ockham, KT11 1NL, between 12.00 and 23.00, on the 31/07/2021; maximum 450 people. The 
event will have amplified recorded music between these times.  
 
Environmental Health object to this application on the grounds that we are unable to determine if it would 
undermine the licensing objective of prevention of public nuisance. There is no information supplied regarding set 
up of the event, the volume of the music and whether any consideration has been given to preventing a nuisance to 
residential properties in the locality. 
 
This objection is also served on Surrey Police Licensing in accordance with the legislation. 
 
Yours faithfully, 

Page 23

Agenda item number: 2
Appendix 4



3

 
Ian Croll 
Environmental Health Officer 
Environmental Protection 
Regulatory Services 
Guildford Borough Council 
Millmead House, Millmead, Guildford, Surrey, GU2 4BB 
Tel: 01483 444372 l Email: ian.croll@guildford.gov.uk 
  
Twitter | Facebook |  Instagram |  Sign up to our enewsletter 
  

Guildford 
Borough 
Council 

http://www.guildford.gov.uk  

  

Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail or any attachment 

 
 
 

 

 

Page 24

Agenda item number: 2
Appendix 4


	Agenda
	2 To consider a Temporary Event Notice (TEN) for Delta Force Paintball, Old Lane, Ockham, Cobham, Surrey, KT11 1NL to be used as a premises for a) the sale by retail of alcohol, and b) the provision of regulated entertainment
	Appendix 1 - Site Location
	Appendix 1 - Location

	Appendix 2 - GT-MAR2021-7-guildford-1052446-Delta Force Paintball-15.03.2021_Redacted
	Appendix 3 - Surrey Police Objection
	Appendix 3 - Surrey Police Objection
	Appendix 3 - Surrey Police Objection 2

	Appendix 4 - Environmental Health Objection
	Appendix 4 - Environmental Health Objection
	Appendix 4 - Environmental Health Objection 2





